

Goddard School of Business & Economics

E.O. Wattis Business Building (WB) Building Emergency Plan

December 21, 2009 Date Adopted

December 6, 2022
Date Revised

Mary Ann Boles
Building Safety Coordinator

Table of Contents

Cover Page	1
I. Building information	3
Administrative Offices/Departments	4
Building Safety Committee	5
Building Emergency Staff	
Critical Operations found in this building	5
Medical and Rescue Trained	5
II. Emergency Procedures	5
Immediate Emergency Notification	5
Building Alarm(s)	
Emergency Notification Procedures	
General Evacuation Procedures	
Evacuation Procedures	
Potential Fire Hazards	
Earthquake Procedures	
Civil Disturbance/Demonstration Procedures	
Criminal or Violent Behavior	
Violent Behavior/Active Shooter Response Protocol	
Explosion or Bomb Threat Procedures	
Evidence Protection for Criminal Event	
Hazardous Materials Procedures	
Utility Failure Elevator Failure	
Elevator Failure Flooding/Plumbing Failure	
Gas Leak	
Ventilation Problem	
III. Emergency Preparedness	15
Supplies	15
Training and Documentation	
Drills	
Securing Building Contents	
Appendices	18
Appendix A: Acronyms and Terms	18
Appendix B: Resource List	
Appendix C: Evacuation for People with Disabilities	
Appendix D: Emergency Preparedness Guidelines for People with Disabilities	
Summary	22

Building Emergency Plan

As a building occupant, you need to be familiar with this plan, so please read it carefully. If you have any questions, consult your Building Safety Coordinator. Keep the following in mind as you read through this document:

- Evacuation routes, exit points, and where to report for roll call after evacuating the building
- When and how to evacuate the building
- Locations of emergency supplies and materials that may be needed in an emergency, such as fire extinguishers, pull alarms and first aid kits
- Proper procedures for notifying emergency responders about an emergency in the building or work area
- Additional responsibilities (such as being a Floor Director or Roll Taker)
- Fire hazards
- Potential exposure to hazardous materials or processes in and around the work area, as well as any means of protecting yourself in the event of an emergency

I. Building Information

BUILDING INFORMATION		
Building Name	E.O. Wattis Business Building (WB)	
Building Safety Coordinator	Mary Ann Boles, Administrative Coordinator	
Building Safety Coordinator Campus Address	WB 201 (Office of the Dean)	
Telephone	OFF: (801) 626.7307 or CELL: (801) 643.1731	
Fax		
E-mail	mboles@weber.edu	
Alternate Building Safety Coordinator	Doris Geide-Stevenson, Interim Dean	
Alt Bldg Safety Coordinator Campus Address	WB 201 (Office of the Dean)	
Telephone	OFF: (801) 626.7634 or CELL: (801) 814.9882	
Fax		
E-mail	dgsteven@weber.edu	

Description of Building:

The E.O. Wattis Business Building was built in 1983 and is the home of the John B. Goddard School of Business & Economics. It is an academic building with two floors:

1st floor – consists of 16 classrooms and one computer lab

2nd floor – consists of four administrative offices, four academic departments, 48 faculty offices, student intern suite, student club suite, innovation lab, adjunct suite, stat tutoring lab, and the Smith Lecture Hall

EAA Location:

1st Floor (classroom level) – all occupants on the 1st floor should report to the statue between the Miller Administration building and Lindquist Hall; try to stay West of the statue

 2^{nd} Floor (office level) – all occupants on the 2^{nd} floor should report to the grassy area (near the metal sculpture) on the West side of Elizabeth Hall

Alternate EAA Location:

If the above two locations have been compromised, please report to the West side of the Bell Tower Plaza just below the stairs (between South side entrance to Elizabeth Hall and the North side entrance into the Shepherd Union Building)

Note: Please do not linger on the sidewalks during an emergency. Sidewalks are often considered fire lanes during an emergency situation and reserved for emergency personnel such as police, fire, medical, etc.

Administrative Offices/Departments

- 1. Office of the Dean
- 2. Advising Center
- 3. Career Center
- 4. Goddard Business Centers
- 5. Department of Business Administration & Marketing
- 6. Department of Supply Chain & Management Information Systems
- 7. School of Accounting & Taxation
- 8. Department of Economics

Building Safety Committee

Role	Department / Room Number	Telephone Number
Building Safety Coordinator	Mary Ann Boles – Office of the Dean / WB 201	(801) 626.7307
Safety Team Member	Karen Hicks – Advising Center / WB 211	(801) 626.6534
Safety Team Member	Alexa Jones – Department of Economics / WB 226	(801) 626.6066
Safety Team Member	Amy Holmes – Department of BSAD & MKTG / WB 216	(801) 626.6075

Building Emergency Staff

Role	Department / Room Number	Telephone Number	
1st Floor – Classroom Level			
Roll Taker	Amy Holmes – Department of BSAD & MKTG / WB 216	(801) 626.6075	
Alternate Roll Taker	Patti Glover – School of Accounting & Taxation / WB 221	(801) 626.6072	
Floor Director(s)	Jared McKeeth – Technology Specialist / WB 227	(801) 626.7388	
2 nd Floor – Office Level			
Roll Taker	Alex Muller – Advising Center / WB 211	(801) 626.6534	
Alternate Roll Taker	Natalie Peterson – Advising Center / WB 211	(801) 626.6534	
Floor Director(s)	Karen Hicks and Alexa Jones		

To aid communications between the safety committee and building emergency staff, the Goddard School has purchased eight (8) Motorola CP110 Two-Way Radios. Several safety team and emergency staff members will receive a radio to maintain and keep in their office. Please carry this radio with you during an emergency or drill.

Critical Operations Found in this Building

There are no critical operations in the Wattis Business Building for which an employee is required to remain in the building during an emergency.

Medical and Rescue Trained

No Wattis Business employee has been trained in medical or rescue duties specific to emergency situations at Wattis Business.

II. Emergency Procedures

Immediate Emergency Notification

Emergency Phone Numbers		
Life Threatening	9-911 from a campus telephone	
Non Life Threatening	Department: University Police Emergency Management Facilities Management	(801) 626.6460 (801) 626.7729 (801) 626.6331

Medical Facilities	Phone Number
Ogden Campus Health Center Student Service Center, Rm 190 8:00 AM to 3:30 PM Monday, Tuesday, Thursday 9:00 AM to 3:30 PM Wednesday 8:00 AM to 2:00 PM Friday	(801) 626.6459
Ogden Campus Pharmacy 8:30 AM to 2:30 PM Monday – Friday	(801) 626.7924
Ogden Campus Counseling Services Student Service Center, Rm 280 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM Monday – Thursday 8:00 AM to 4:30 PM Friday	(801) 626.6406
Davis Campus Health Center, Rm 220 9:00 AM to 3:00 PM Monday 9:00 AM to 12:00 PM Thursday	(801) 395.3521
Emergency Information	FM/AM Dial Numbers
KLO	1430 AM
KWCR (Weber State)	88.1 FM
Building Information Line (if provided)	XXX-XXXX

Building Alarm(s)

This building has alarm sounds.

• The evacuation alarm is a horn.

When you hear the evacuation alarm, leave the building. Follow evacuation procedures (see section below).

• The elevator alarm is a bell.

When you hear the elevator alarm, call University Police at (801) 626.6460.

• The Emergency Public Address System is a recorded or live voice.

When you hear the recorded or live voice come across the PA system, please follow the instructions given.

Emergency Notification Procedures

When you call 911 (or any other emergency number) from a campus location to request emergency assistance, you will be connected to WSU Police Dispatch. Call from a safe location and remember to:

- Stay calm.
- Be prepared to answer the following questions:
 - o Where is the emergency located?
 - What is the emergency? (fire, medical, hazardous material, etc.)
 - o How did it happen?
 - o When did it happen?
 - Who are you? (your name)

- Gather any other information that may be useful for the emergency responders (e.g. are there
 any injuries involved?).
- Do not hang up until instructed to do so by the dispatcher.

You do not need to know all the answers to these questions, but quickly gather as much information as you can. Give a telephone number or safe location where the emergency responders can call or meet you, and wait for the responders at that safe location.

General Evacuation Procedures

When evacuating your building or work area:

- Stay calm, do not rush and do not panic.
- Safely stop your work.
- Gather your personal belongings if it is safe to do so. (Reminder: take prescription medications
 out with you if at all possible; it may be hours before you are allowed back in the building.)
- If safe, close your office door and window, but do not lock them.
- Use the nearest safe stairs and proceed to the nearest exit. Do <u>not</u> use the elevator.
- Proceed to the designated Emergency Assembly Area (EAA) and report to your roll taker.
- Wait for any instructions from emergency responders.
- Do not re-enter the building or work area until you have been instructed to do so by the emergency responders.

Evacuation Procedures

A building occupant is required by law to evacuate the building when the fire alarm sounds.

Emergency Information	Locations
Posted evacuation diagrams including routes and fire alarm pull stations	Base of stairways, elevator landings and inside public doors.
Maps of Emergency Assembly Areas (EAA)	EAA Location:
	1st Floor (classroom level) – all occupants on the 1st floor should report to the statue between the Miller Administration building and Lindquist Hall; try to stay West of the statue
	2 nd Floor (office level) – all occupants on the 2 nd floor should report to the grassy area (near the metal sculpture) on the West side of Elizabeth Hall
	Alternate EAA Location:
	If the above two locations have been compromised, please report to the West side of the Bell Tower Plaza just below the stairs (between South side

entrance to Elizabeth Hall and the North side entrance into the Shepherd Union Building)
Note: Please do not linger on the sidewalks during an emergency. Sidewalks are often considered fire lanes during an emergency situation and reserved for emergency personnel such as police, fire, medical, etc.

Potential Fire Hazards

Following are the potential* fire hazards identified in Wattis Business:

• Combustible materials (e.g. paper, cardboard, wood, etc.)

Earthquake Procedures

In case of an earthquake:

Inside the building:

- Duck under the nearest sturdy object and hold onto it until the shaking stops. If you are not near a sturdy object, make yourself as small as possible and cover your head and neck.
- If you stand in a doorway, brace yourself against the frame and watch out for a swinging door or other people.
- Avoid windows, filing cabinets, bookcases, and other heavy objects that could fall or shatter.
- Stay under cover until the shaking stops, and then leave the building.
- If it is safe to do so, stabilize any laboratory procedure that could lead to further danger. (For instance, turn off Bunsen burners or electrical equipment.)

Outside the building:

- Move away from trees, signs, buildings, and electrical poles and wires.
- Protect your head with your arms from falling bricks, glass, plaster, and other debris.
- Move away from fire and smoke.
- Proceed to the Emergency Assembly Area <u>if safe</u>, or proceed to a pre-designated alternate assembly area. Check in with your roll taker(s) to let them know that you are all right (see "General Evacuation Procedures" above this section).
- Stay alert for further instructions.

Civil Disturbance/Demonstration Procedures

^{*}Fire hazards are controlled by proper storage and housekeeping procedures.

Most campus demonstrations are peaceful and people not involved should attempt to carry on business as usual. Avoid provoking or obstructing demonstrators. Should a disturbance occur, call WSU Police at 911.

If a disturbance seems to threaten the occupants of the building, report it immediately to WSU Police and take the following actions:

- Alert all persons in the area of the situation.
- Lock all doors and windows.
- Close blinds to prevent flying glass.
- If necessary, your department may decide to cease work operations.
- If necessary to evacuate, follow directions from police.

If evacuation occurs, meet at the location designated as your buildings Emergency Assembly Area (EAA) and wait for additional instructions and information (see "General Evacuation Procedures" above).

Criminal or Violent Behavior Procedures

Everyone is asked to assist in making the campus a safe place by being alert to suspicious situations or persons and reporting them as outlined below.

If you are the victim of, or are involved in, any on-campus violation of the law such as assault, robbery, theft, overt sexual behavior, etc., do not take any unnecessary risk. Notify University Police as soon as possible and give them the following information:

- Nature of the incident
- Location of the incident
- Description of the person(s) involved
- Description of the property involved

If you witness a criminal act or notice person(s) acting suspiciously on campus, immediately notify University Police at 911.

Assist the police when they arrive by supplying them with any additional information requested; ask others to do the same.

Violent Behavior / Active Shooter Response Protocol

- 1. College and University campuses are no longer immune to serious or violent crime. In the aftermath of the Virginia Tech shootings, it is imperative that we provide students, staff, and faculty with protocols on how to respond during potentially violent criminal attacks on campus.
- 2. **Response to Potentially Violent Criminal Behavior.** If you see or know that a person has a firearm on campus or if you hear shots fired on campus or if you witness an armed person shooting people, **protect yourself first move to a safe location.**

- 2.1 As soon as possible, call the police by dialing 911 or 6460 when using a campus phone or use a campus Emergency Blue Light Phone if available and safe.
- 2.2 Tell the dispatcher your name, location, phone number and describe the situation you are reporting: who, what, when, where, how and why (if known). Is anyone hurt or injured?
- 2.3 If possible, alert others in the immediate area about the current situation.
- 3. **Active Shooter Incident**. An active shooter can be described as a person who causes death or serious bodily injury through the use of a firearm. This is a dynamic situation that usually evolves rapidly and demands an immediate response from law enforcement officers to terminate the life-threatening situation. The immediate response of the first officers on the scene is to take aggressive action to find and stop the shooter or shooters.
 - 3.1 **Active Shooter Response**. Officers from Weber State University Police, Ogden City Police, South Ogden City Police, and Weber County Sheriff's Office will likely be the first to respond to the scene. As they move into the affected area, rescue efforts will be delayed until the shooter is located and stopped or no longer a threat to life safety.
 - 3.2 If you are wounded or with someone who is wounded, these officers will bypass you to search for the shooter and stop the killing. Rescue teams will follow shortly to aid you and others.
 - 3.3 To assist the police, please stay calm and patient during this time, and do not interfere with police operations. If you know where the shooter is, and/or have the shooter's description, tell the police.
 - 3.4 When you encounter the police, keep your hands empty and in plain view at all times. Listen to their instructions and do exactly what they say. If you are evacuating, carry nothing that could be mistaken for a weapon.
 - 3.5 Rescue teams will follow shortly after the first responding officers enter the building. They will attend to the injured and remove everyone safely from the area.

4. If the shooter is outside your building:

- 4.1 Unless directed otherwise, turn off all the lights, close and lock all windows and doors. If you cannot lock the door, try to block the door with desks and chairs.
- 4.2 If you can do so safely, get all occupants on the floor and out of the line of fire.

4.3 If you can do so safely, move to the core area of the building and remain there until the police tell you it is safe to leave. Do not respond to commands until you are certain they are issued by a police officer.

5. If the shooter is inside your building:

- 5.1 If it is possible to escape the area safely and avoid danger, do so by the nearest exit or window. Leave in the room books, backpacks, purses, etc.
- 5.2 As you exit the building, keep your hands above your head and listen for instructions that may be given by police officers. If an officer points a firearm at you, make no movement that may cause the officer to mistake your actions for a threat. Try to stay calm.
- 5.3 If you get out of the building and do not see a police officer, attempt to call the police by dialing 911 or 6460 from any campus phone or use a campus Emergency Blue Light Phone if available and safe. Tell the dispatcher your name and location and follow their instructions.
- 5.4 If you are unable to escape the building, move out of the hallway and into an office or classroom and try to lock the door. If the door will not lock, try barricading the door with desks and chairs. Lie on the floor and/or under a desk and remain silent. Wait for the police to come and find you.

6. If the shooter enters your office or classroom:

- 6.1 There is no set procedure in this situation. If possible call 911 and talk with a police dispatcher. If you cannot speak, leave the phone line open so the police can hear what is going on.
- 6.2 Use common sense. If you are hiding and flight is impossible, attempts to negotiate with the suspect may be successful. Playing dead may also be a consideration.
- 6.3 Attempting to overcome the suspect with force is a last resort that should only be considered in the most extreme circumstances. **Only you can decide if this is something you should do.** Remember there may be more than one shooter.
- 6.4 If the shooter exits your area and you are able to escape, leave the area immediately. Do not touch anything in the area and remember to be alert for responding police officers who may mistake you as the shooter.
- 6.5 While escaping, as soon as you see a police officer put your hands over your head and immediately comply with the officers instructions.

7. **What else can you do?** Prepare a plan of action for an active shooter in advance. Determine possible escape routes and know where the nearest building exits are.

Explosion or Bomb Threat Procedures

A suspicious-looking box, package, object, or container in or near your work area may be a bomb or explosive material. <u>Do not handle or touch the object</u>. Move to a safe area and call WSU Police immediately at (801) 626.6460. Use a telephone in a safe area. Do not operate any power switch, and <u>do not activate the fire alarm</u>.

If there is an explosion:

- Take cover under sturdy furniture, or leave the building if directed to do so by emergency responders.
- Stay away from windows.
- Do not light matches.
- Move well away from the site of the hazard to a safe location.
- Use stairs only; do not use elevators.
- Call 911 if no one has called. Follow "Emergency Notification Procedures" above.

If you receive a bomb threat (via the telephone):

- Stay calm and keep your voice calm.
- Pay close attention to details. Talk to the caller to obtain as much information as possible.
- Take notes. Ask questions:
 - O When will it explode?
 - O Where is it right now?
 - o What does it look like?
 - What kind of bomb is it?
 - o Where did you leave it?
 - o Did you place the bomb?
 - o Who is the target?
 - o Why did you plant it?
 - o What is your address?
 - O What is your name?
- Observe the caller's:
 - Speech patterns (accent, tone)
 - Emotional state (angry, agitated, calm, etc.)
 - Background noise (traffic, people talking and accents, music and type, etc.)
 - Age and gender

- Write down other data:
 - Date and time of call
 - How threat was received (letter, note, telephone)
- Call University Police and submit your notes from the telephone call or the bomb threat (letter or note) to University Police.
- Follow University Police's instructions.

If you are told by emergency responders to evacuate the building (see "General Evacuation Procedures" above):

- Check your work area for unfamiliar items. <u>Do not touch suspicious items</u>; report them to campus authorities.
- Take personal belongings when you leave.
- Leave doors and windows open; do not turn light switch on or off.
- Use stairs only; do not use elevators.
- Move well away from the building and follow instructions from emergency responders.

Evidence Protection for Criminal Event

- Document details of evidence
 - Location
 - Description
 - Witnesses or suspects
- Notify Police Officer on scene of evidence, so they can:
 - Guard evidence
 - Prevent tampering by suspects, witnesses or conditions
- Do not disturb any evidence
- Evidence may be dangerous; tampering with it can:
 - Cause injury to people
 - o Contaminate it
 - Destroy it
 - Compromise legal proceedings

Hazardous Materials Procedures

If you witness a hazardous material spill, evacuate the spill site and warn others to stay away. Call 911 if you believe the spill may be life threatening. If you can determine that the spill is not life threatening, follow the procedures outlined below.

If you are a <u>hazardous material user (user)</u>, you should be trained by your supervisor on proper use and storage of hazardous materials. This training should include hazard information, proper procedures for preventing spills, and emergency procedures when a spill happens.

If as a user you spill a hazardous material or materials:

- Leave the area of the spill first and proceed to a safe location nearby. Then assess if you have the proper training and protective gear to clean up the spill.
- If you have been properly trained and are able to clean up the spill, follow proper cleanup
 procedures and use proper personal protection. Manage the generated waste as appropriate.
 Consult your supervisor if necessary.
- Isolate the spill area to keep everyone away, and post signs as necessary.
- If you require assistance to clean up the spill:
 - During normal business hours (8 AM-5 PM, M-F), you can call Environmental Health & Safety (EH&S) directly at (801) 626.7823.
 - During off-hours, call University Police at (801) 626.6460. University Police will call EH&S.
- If you suspect or witness a release of a hazardous material to the environment (air, water, ground) call University Police.

Utility Failure

In the event of a major utility failure, notify Facilities Management at (801) 626.6331.

Before 8:00 AM and after 4:30 PM or on weekends and holidays, notify WSU Police at (801) 626.6460.

Evacuate the building if the fire alarm sounds and/or upon notification by the police (see "General Evacuation Procedures" above).

A major power outage may not in itself be destructive, but a possible resulting panic or fire could endanger life and property. Panic can be partially avoided by an immediate decision on the need to cancel classes or meetings in progress or to evacuate the building (see "Evacuation Procedures" above).

In laboratory buildings, fume hoods do not operate during a power outage and most laboratories should not be used until the ventilation is properly restored. (For more information, refer to the Fact Sheet, "Power Failure".)

Elevator Failure

If you are trapped in an elevator, use the emergency telephone to call for assistance.

If the elevator does not have an emergency telephone, turn on the emergency alarm (located on the control panel) to signal your need for help.

Flooding/Plumbing Failure

If flooding occurs (due to a plumbing failure or other problem):

Cease using all electrical equipment.

- Notify University Police at (801) 626.6460. If necessary, evacuate the building (see "General Evacuation Procedures" above).
- Notify Facilities Management at (801) 626.6331.

Gas Leak

If you smell natural gas:

- Cease all operations immediately.
- Do not switch lights on or off.
- Evacuate as soon as possible (see "General Evacuation Procedures" above) and notify University Police at 911.
- Notify Facilities Management at (801) 626.6331.

Ventilation Problem

If odors come from the ventilation system:

- Immediately notify Facilities Management at (801) 626.6331and Environmental Health & Safety (EH&S) at (801) 626.8004.
- If necessary, cease all operations and evacuate area (see "General Evacuation Procedures" above).
- If smoke is present, activate the fire alarm system by pulling the pull station and call 911 from a safe location.

III. Emergency Preparedness

Supplies

Be prepared for emergencies. Keep an emergency kit in your work area that is easy to carry out of the office to the Emergency Assembly Area (EAA) when evacuating the building. Each departmental office will receive a complimentary emergency kit which may be expanded at their expense to fit the needs of their department.

The following supplies are recommended for your personal kit:

- Drinking water (1 gallon a day; 3 days' supply recommended and replace quarterly)
- Food (keep airtight in pest-proof packaging and replace annually)
- Flashlight and extra batteries
- Utility knife
- Personal first aid kit with any special personal needs included
- Sturdy, comfortable shoes and clean socks

- Space blanket (a standard blanket is okay if space and weight permit)
- Light sticks
- Heavy duty work gloves
- Cash (some in quarters)
- Sanitation needs (such as tissue paper, small bottle of bleach, plastic bags, plastic bucket)
- Customized items such as prescription glasses or contacts, medicine, etc.
- Duct tape and/or barrier tape
- Large sheets of paper, markers, pens and pencils
- Whistle
- Campus and area maps
- A copy of the building roster
- · Building notification roster

Training and Documentation

Training is an integral part of the safety program for your building and it is the responsibility of each department to ensure all their employees are trained on the Building Emergency Plan for the building(s) they occupy. It is the responsibility of the occupant to become familiar with the Building Emergency Plan, to know evacuation routes and assembly areas, and to attend training(s) given by their department. As a supplement to the training, the Building Coordinator posts information in the building to ensure all occupants and guests can safely exit during an emergency. All department employees should get annual refresher training on the contents of the Building Emergency Plan for buildings they work in.

Other trainings recommended for building occupants are Campus Emergency Response Team (CERT), CPR, first aid, and fire extinguisher training. For information call the Emergency Manager at (801) 626.7729. The department can request fire extinguisher training from the Fire Marshal at (801) 626.7062.

Drills

Building evacuation drills should be tested annually. Residence halls are required to have a drill every semester. If your building needs to have a drill, the Building Safety Coordinator is responsible for conducting the drill and documenting it. The campus Fire Marshal and Emergency Manager can help you in your planning. Call (801) 626.7062 or (801) 626.7729 for more information.

Securing Building Contents

Experts claim that more than 90 percent of earthquake-related injuries do not come from collapsing buildings but from objects inside the building which fall on people (or from windows shattering and causing lacerations). Also, these objects will be damaged themselves, leading to expensive replacement costs after the quake. Therefore, it is in your best interest to spend a little effort now to prevent this from happening. You will need to physically secure shelves, computers, wall hangings, equipment, etc. You may want to conduct your own inspection of your work area.

The main things to look for are:

Shelves or cabinets that are not bolted to the wall

- Computers or typewriters on desks
- Objects on shelves which may fall (even a 3-ring binder, if thrown with force, can cause significant injury)
- Freestanding objects that do not have a high enough base: height ratio to be "fall proof" (e.g., a tall filing cabinet)
- Desks or seating areas directly under plate glass windows
- Heavy hanging pictures, mirrors, or plants
- Cupboards or cabinets without secure "automatic" latches
- Objects on wheels which are not locked in one position (e.g., an audiovisual cart)
- Heavy, breakable items not on the lowest possible shelves
- Water heaters which are not strapped to the wall
- Doorways that might be blocked by falling objects

For more information about any concerns specific to your area (e.g., animal cages, chemicals, valuable documents under water sprinklers, etc.) call the Emergency Manager at (801) 626.7729.

For more information about securing falling hazards, please contact your Building Safety Coordinator at (801) 626.7307 or Facilities Management at (801) 626.6331.

Appendices

Appendix A: Acronyms and Terms

Acronym	Meaning
BSC	Building Safety Coordinator
EAA	Emergency Assembly Area
Term	Definition
Building Safety Coordinator	A University employee who has a defined role in campus emergency/disaster preparedness: he or she prepares building response plans and coordinates education and planning in this area for all building occupants. In addition, he or she serves as the communication liaison between campus service agencies and building occupants for specific circumstances enumerated in the Building Coordinator position description.
Building Emergency Plan	A document which consists of emergency procedures, activities for preparing for emergencies, and roles and responsibilities of building occupants.
Building Emergency Staff	The occupants of the building (in both volunteer and appointed positions) who work on building safety issues, such as members of the Building Safety Committee, Role Takers, Floor Directors and the Building Coordinator.
Building Safety Committee	A group composed of members of each department in the building, generally chaired by the Building Coordinator, charged with building emergency preparedness or overseeing building safety concerns.
Campus Emergency Operations	The headquarters for emergency responders and designated Center (EOC) representatives of campus essential services, where resources are allocated during a disaster.
EAA (Emergency Assembly Area)	A pre-designated safe location near a building where building occupants assemble and report to the Roll Taker(s) after evacuating their building.
Emergency Responder(s)	Person(s) who provide assistance in an emergency (or potential emergency) situation in a building. They are not building occupants and may be from University Police, local fire departments, Public Safety, etc. In critical situations they may take charge of the building and have full authority over activities in and around the building.
Floor Director	A building occupant assigned to assist with a building evacuation during an emergency by alerting other occupants on their way out of the building.
Roll Taker	A building occupant assigned to take roll at the emergency assembly area (EAA) after a building evacuation.
Campus Emergency Response Team (CERT)	Individuals with disaster training skills in fire suppression, medical, search & rescue, team organization and psychology

Appendix B: Resource List

A number of University programs and service organizations are available to help maintain and promote a safe and healthful work environment for the campus community. A list of telephone numbers and web sites is provided below; please use the Campus Telephone Directory for up-to-date telephone numbers.

Weber State University, Main Campus Information Line/Web Site	http://www.weber.edu/	(801) 626.6000
University Police	http://www.weber.edu/police	(801) 626.6460
Office of Environment, Health & Safety	http://departments.weber.edu/ehs/	(801) 626.7547
Emergency Manager		(801) 626.7729
Facilities Management Services	http://weber.edu/facilities.xml	(801) 626.6331 after hrs (801) 626.6693
University Health Services	http://departments.weber.edu/healthcenter/	(801) 626.6459
University Counseling Center	http://departments.weber.edu/CPSC/html/cc.htm	(801) 626.6406
University Services for Students with Disabilities	http://departments.weber.edu/ssd/	(801) 626.6413

Appendix C: Evacuation of People with Disabilities

Evacuating a disabled or injured person yourself is the last resort. Consider your options and the risks of injuring yourself and others in an evacuation attempt. Do not make an emergency situation worse.

Evacuation is difficult and uncomfortable for both the rescuers and the people being assisted. Some people have conditions that can be aggravated or triggered if they are moved incorrectly. Remember that environmental conditions (smoke, debris, loss of electricity) will complicate evacuation efforts.

The following guidelines are general and may not apply in every circumstance.

- Occupants should be invited to volunteer ahead of time to assist disabled people in an
 emergency. If a volunteer is not available, designate someone to assist who is willing to accept
 the responsibility.
- Two or more trained volunteers, if available, should conduct the evacuation.
- DO NOT evacuate disabled people in their wheelchairs if you are not on the ground floor. This is standard practice to ensure the safety of disabled people and volunteers. Wheelchairs will be evacuated later if possible. Special evacuation chairs are available in Promontory Tower and in the Student Services Center in the Services for Students with Disabilities Office.
- Always ASK disabled people how you can help BEFORE attempting any rescue technique or giving assistance. Ask how they can best be assisted or moved, and if there are any special considerations or items that need to come with them.
- Before attempting an evacuation, volunteers and the people being assisted should discuss how any lifting will be done and where they are going.
- Proper lifting techniques (e.g. bending the knees, keeping the back straight, holding the person close before lifting, and using leg muscles to lift) should be used to avoid injury to rescuers' backs. Ask permission of the evacuee if an evacuation chair or similar device is being considered as an aid in an evacuation. When using such devices, make sure the person is secured properly. Be careful on stairs and rest at landings if necessary.
- Certain lifts may need to be modified depending on the person's disabilities.

Appendix D: Emergency Preparedness Guidelines for People with Disabilities

- Follow the guidelines found in the Appendix C: Evacuation of People with Disabilities. In particular:
 - Make your environment earthquake and fire safe (do not place heavy objects above where you sit or sleep, bolt bookcases to the wall, make sure your exit route is clear).
 - Keep sufficient emergency supplies to last three days (include food, water, prescription medicines and any other supplies you might need).
 - Become familiar with alternate evacuation routes in buildings you use frequently.
 - Learn what may constitute a safe area in buildings you use frequently.
- Develop other strategies for your protection. For example, if you use a wheelchair and cannot duck and cover under a table:
 - o Protect your head as much as possible.
 - Move away from windows, filing cabinets, bookcases, light fixtures, and heavy objects that could shatter, fall, or tip over.
 - o Engage the electronic brake or wheel locks on your wheelchair.
- Consider various disaster scenarios and decide ahead of time what you would do in different emergencies. For example, people with power wheelchairs should consider the following:
 - In evacuations, it is standard practice to evacuate disabled people without their wheelchairs. Where should you be located while waiting for your wheelchair?
 - Are there certain medications or support systems that you need?
 - o Do you have access to another wheelchair if yours cannot be evacuated?
- Know your limitations and be aware of your needs in different emergencies.

- If you need assistance, ask for it. People may not be aware of your circumstances or know how they can help.
- Consider how people will give you emergency information and how you will communicate your needs if you have impaired speaking, hearing, or sight.
- Consider arranging a buddy system with friends or colleagues so that someone will check with you, alert you as necessary, and see whether you need any assistance.
- If you need to be evacuated, help yourself and rescuers by providing them with information about your needs and the best ways to assist you.

Blindness or Visual Impairment

Bomb Threat, Earthquake, Fire, Hazardous Materials Releases, and Power Outages:

- Give verbal instructions to advise about the safest route or direction using compass directions, estimated distances, and directional terms.
- DO NOT grasp a visually impaired person's arm. Ask if he or she would like to hold onto your arm as you exit, especially if there is debris or a crowd.
- Give other verbal instructions or information (i.e. elevators cannot be used).

Deafness or Hearing Loss

Bomb Threat, Earthquake, Fire, Hazardous Materials Releases, and Power Outages:

- Get the attention of a person with a hearing disability by touch and eye contact. Clearly state the problem. Gestures and pointing are helpful, but be prepared to write a brief statement if the person does not seem to understand.
- Offer visual instructions to advice of safest route or direction by pointing toward exits or evacuation maps.

Mobility Impairment

Bomb Threat, Earthquake, Fire, and Hazardous Materials Releases:

- It may be necessary to help clear the exit route of debris (if possible) so that the person with a disability can move out or to a safer area.
- If people with mobility impairments cannot exit, they should move to a safer area, e.g.,
 - o most enclosed stairwells
 - an office with the door shut which is a good distance from the hazard (and away from falling debris in the case of earthquakes)
 Safer areas in your building can be identified ahead of time, call campus Emergency

Management office for more information at (801) 626.7150.

- Notify police or fire personnel immediately about any people remaining in the building and their locations.
- Police or fire personnel will decide whether people are safe where they are and will evacuate them as necessary. The Fire Marshal may determine that it is safe to override the rule against using elevators.
- If people are in immediate danger and cannot be moved to a safer area to wait for assistance, it may be necessary to evacuate them using an evacuation chair or a carry technique.

Power Outages:

- If an outage occurs during the day and people with disabilities choose to wait in the building for electricity to be restored, they can move near a window where there is natural light and access to a working telephone. During regular building hours, Building Safety Coordinator or alternate should be notified so they can advise emergency personnel.
- If people would like to leave and an evacuation has been ordered, or if the outage occurs at night, call Building Coordinator to request evacuation assistance if needed.

Summary

Prepare occupants in your building ahead of time for emergency evacuations. Know your building occupants. Train staff, faculty, and students to be aware of the needs of people with disabilities and to know how to offer assistance. Hold evacuation drills in which occupants participate, and evaluate drills to identify areas that need improvement. Plans must cover regular working hours, after hours, and weekends. Everyone needs to take responsibility for preparing for emergencies. People with disabilities should consider what they would do and whether they need to take additional steps to prepare. Additional information is available from the Services for Students with Disabilities Office and from the Emergency Manager.